Environmental and social safeguards report form pursuant to para. 17 of the IDP

Basic project or programme information

Project or programme title

Building Climate Resilience for Food and Livelihoods in the
Horn of Africa (BREFOL)

Existence of subproject(s) to

be identified after GCF Board | Yes

approval

Sector (public or private) Public

Accredited entity African Development Bank (AfDB)

Environmental and social
safeguards (ESS) category

Category B

Location - specific
location(s) of project or
target country or location(s)
of programme

Djibouti, Ethiopia, Kenya, Somalia, and South Sudan

Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) (if applicable)

Date of disclosure on
accredited entity’s website

Friday, February 2, 2024

Language(s) of disclosure

Djibouti: French
Ethiopia: English, Amharic
Kenya: English

Somalia: English, Somali
South Sudan: English

Explanation on language

Due to the African Development Bank’s multicultural status
and depending on the country’s preference, all
communications are made through the use of one of the two
official languages, English and French. In Ethiopia and
Somalia, where the official languages are Amharic and
Somalj, respectively, we have also published the documents
in these languages.

Link to disclosure

Djibouti

English:

https://www.afdb.org/sites /default/files /djibouti cges drl
sp ii vf 30.09.21 - version anglaise.pdf

French:

http://www.maepe-

rh.dj/index.php?option=com content&view=article&id=91
&ltemid=374

Ethiopia

English:

https://www.afdb.org/sites /default/files /esmf main repor
t final 21 september 2021 ethiopia 0.pdf

Ambharic:

http://moa.gov.et/images/2023 /BREFONS ESMF.pdf

Kenya

English:
https://www.afdb.org/sites /default/files /kenya esmf final
-revised .pdf



https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/djibouti_cges_drlsp_ii_vf_30.09.21_-_version_anglaise.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/djibouti_cges_drlsp_ii_vf_30.09.21_-_version_anglaise.pdf
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/esmf_main_report_final_21_september_2021_ethiopia_0.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/esmf_main_report_final_21_september_2021_ethiopia_0.pdf
http://moa.gov.et/images/2023/BREFONS______ESMF.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/kenya_esmf_final-revised_.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/kenya_esmf_final-revised_.pdf

Somalia
English:
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/environmental a
nd social management framework - brefons - somalia.pdf

Somali:
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-
content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-

report.pdf

South Sudan

English:

https://www.afdb.org/sites /default/files /ssd environment
al and social management framework ssd-

hoa project em2.pdf

Other link(s)

AfDB

https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-
program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-
africa-p-z1-c00-073

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock, and Fisheries of
Djibouti

French:

http://www.maepe-

rh.dj/index.php?option=com content&view=article&id=91
&ltemid=374

Ministry of Agriculture of Ethiopia

English:

http://moa.gov.et/images/2023 /Ethiopia ESMF version G
CF24]an2024.pdf

Ambharic:
http://moa.gov.et/images/2023 /BREFONS ESMF.pdf

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries and
Cooperatives of Kenya

English:

https://kilimo.go.ke /wp-
content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-
SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-

BREFONS.pdf

Ministry of Livestock Forestry & Range of Somalia

English:
https://molfr.sov.so /wp-

content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia ESMF-
version GCF25]an2024-1.pdf

Somali:
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-
content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-

report.pdf



https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/environmental_and_social_management_framework_-_brefons_-_somalia.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/environmental_and_social_management_framework_-_brefons_-_somalia.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/ssd_environmental_and_social_management_framework_ssd-_hoa_project_em2.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/ssd_environmental_and_social_management_framework_ssd-_hoa_project_em2.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/ssd_environmental_and_social_management_framework_ssd-_hoa_project_em2.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-africa-p-z1-c00-073
https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-africa-p-z1-c00-073
https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-africa-p-z1-c00-073
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
https://protect-za.mimecast.com/s/h55XC58MVPfwMX7yfzcIgG?domain=moa.gov.et
https://protect-za.mimecast.com/s/h55XC58MVPfwMX7yfzcIgG?domain=moa.gov.et
http://moa.gov.et/images/2023/BREFONS______ESMF.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia_ESMF-version_GCF25Jan2024-1.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia_ESMF-version_GCF25Jan2024-1.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia_ESMF-version_GCF25Jan2024-1.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf

Ministry of Agriculture and Food Security of South

Sudan

English:

https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-

content/uploads/2024/01/South Sudan ESMF version GC
F24Jan2024.pdf

Remarks

A framework for an ESIA consistent with the requirements
for a Category B programme is contained in the
Environmental and Social Management Framework (ESMF)
for each of the target countries.

Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) (if applicable)

Date of disclosure on
accredited entity’s website

Friday, February 2, 2024

Language(s) of disclosure

English, Amharic, French, and Somali

Explanation on language

Due to the African Development Bank’s multicultural status
and depending on the country’s preference, all
communications are made through the use of one of the two
official languages, English and French. In Ethiopia and
Somalia, where the official languages are Amharic and
Somalj, respectively, we have also published the documents
in these languages

Link to disclosure

Djibouti

English:

https://www.afdb.org/sites /default/files /djibouti cges drl
sp ii vf 30.09.21 - version anglaise.pdf

French:

http://www.maepe-

rh.dj/index.php?option=com content&view=article&id=91
&ltemid=374

Ethiopia

English:

https://www.afdb.org/sites /default/files /esmf main repor
t final 21 september 2021 ethiopia 0.pdf

Ambharic:
http://moa.gov.et/images/2023 /BREFONS ESMF.pdf

Kenya
English:https: //www.afdb.org/sites /default/files /kenya es

mf final-revised .pdf

Somalia
English:
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/environmental a
nd social management framework - brefons - somalia.pdf

Somali:
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-
content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-

report.pdf

South Sudan
English:



https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/South_Sudan_ESMF_version_GCF24Jan2024.pdf
https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/South_Sudan_ESMF_version_GCF24Jan2024.pdf
https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/South_Sudan_ESMF_version_GCF24Jan2024.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/djibouti_cges_drlsp_ii_vf_30.09.21_-_version_anglaise.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/djibouti_cges_drlsp_ii_vf_30.09.21_-_version_anglaise.pdf
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/esmf_main_report_final_21_september_2021_ethiopia_0.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/esmf_main_report_final_21_september_2021_ethiopia_0.pdf
http://moa.gov.et/images/2023/BREFONS______ESMF.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/kenya_esmf_final-revised_.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/kenya_esmf_final-revised_.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/environmental_and_social_management_framework_-_brefons_-_somalia.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/environmental_and_social_management_framework_-_brefons_-_somalia.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf

https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/ssd environment
al and social management framework ssd-
hoa project em2.pdf

Other link(s)

AfDB

https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-
program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-
africa-p-z1-c00-073

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock, and Fisheries of
Djibouti

French:

http://www.maepe-

rh.dj/index.php?option=com content&view=article&id=91
&ltemid=374

Ministry of Agriculture of Ethiopia

English:

http://moa.gov.et/images/2023 /Ethiopia ESMF version G
CF24]an2024.pdf

Ambharic:
http://moa.gov.et/images/2023 /BREFONS ESMF.pdf

Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries and
Cooperatives of Kenva

English:

https://kilimo.go.ke /wp-
content/uploads/2024/01 /ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-
SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMFE-FOR-

BREFONS.pdf

Ministry of Livestock Forestry & Range of Somalia

English:
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-

content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia ESMF-
version GCF25]Jan2024-1.pdf

Somali:
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-
content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-

report.pdf
Ministry of Agriculture and Food Security of South

Sudan

English:

https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-

content/uploads/2024/01/South Sudan ESMF version GC
F24]an2024.pdf

Remarks

An ESMP consistent with the requirements for a Category B
programme is contained in the Environmental and Social
Management Framework (ESMF) for each of the target
countries.

Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS) (if applicable)

Date of disclosure on
accredited entity’s website

N/A



https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/ssd_environmental_and_social_management_framework_ssd-_hoa_project_em2.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/ssd_environmental_and_social_management_framework_ssd-_hoa_project_em2.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/sites/default/files/ssd_environmental_and_social_management_framework_ssd-_hoa_project_em2.pdf
https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-africa-p-z1-c00-073
https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-africa-p-z1-c00-073
https://www.afdb.org/en/documents/multinational-program-build-resilience-food-and-nutrition-security-horn-africa-p-z1-c00-073
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
http://www.maepe-rh.dj/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=91&Itemid=374
https://protect-za.mimecast.com/s/h55XC58MVPfwMX7yfzcIgG?domain=moa.gov.et
https://protect-za.mimecast.com/s/h55XC58MVPfwMX7yfzcIgG?domain=moa.gov.et
http://moa.gov.et/images/2023/BREFONS______ESMF.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://kilimo.go.ke/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/ENVIRONMENTAL-AND-SOCIAL-MANAGEMENT-FRAMEWORK-ESMF-FOR-BREFONS.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia_ESMF-version_GCF25Jan2024-1.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia_ESMF-version_GCF25Jan2024-1.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somalia_ESMF-version_GCF25Jan2024-1.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://molfr.gov.so/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/Somali-Version-ESMF-report.pdf
https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/South_Sudan_ESMF_version_GCF24Jan2024.pdf
https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/South_Sudan_ESMF_version_GCF24Jan2024.pdf
https://mafs.gov.ss/wp-content/uploads/2024/01/South_Sudan_ESMF_version_GCF24Jan2024.pdf

Language(s) of disclosure N/A
Explanation on language N/A
Link to disclosure N/A
Other link(s) N/A
Remarks N/A

Any other relevant ESS reports, e.g. Resettlement Action Plan (RAP), Resettlement
Policy Framework (RPF), Indigenous Peoples Plan (IPP), Indigenous Peoples Planning
Framework (IPPF) (if applicable)

Description of

report/disclosure on N/A
accredited entity’s website

N/A N/A
Explanation on language N/A
Link to disclosure N/A
Other link(s) N/A
Remarks N/A

Disclosure in locations convenient to affected peoples (stakeholders)

Date

Friday, February 2, 2024

Place

Djibouti

Ministry of Agriculture, Water, Fisheries and Livestock
(MoAWFL), Zone Boulaos - BP: 4250, Djibouti — République
de Djibouti

Ethiopia
Ministry of Agriculture (MoA), PO Box 62347, Addis Ababa,
Ethiopia

Kenya
Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Development,
Cathedral Road, Nairobi, P. 0. Box 30028-00100 Kenya

Somalia

Ministry of Livestock, Forestry and Range, Warta Nabada
District

Mogadishu, Somalia

South Sudan
Ministry of Agriculture and Food Security, Ministries
Complex, Juba, South Sudan.

Date of Board meeting in which the FP is intended to be considered

Date of accredited entity’s
Board meeting

Monday, September 30, 2024

Date of GCF’s Board meeting

Monday, July 15, 2024

Note: This form was prepared by the accredited entity stated above.




